# **Black Sluice Internal Drainage Board**

# Policy No: 10

# **Delegation of Authority Policy**

Review Dates:

Reviewed	Audit & Risk Committee 12th April 2022
Board Approved	13 <sup>th</sup> June 2023

## DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY TO COMMITTEES

#### Executive Committee

- 1. Approve salary levels for members of staff.
- 2. Recruitment of Senior Officers.
- 3. Set levels of rents for Board's property and land.
- 4. Approve awards of large contracts following tender or quotation submission.
- 5. Approve orders for plant expenditure in excess of £10,000 within annual budget estimate.
- 6. Approve any changes to the investment portfolio of the Bourne Fen Farm Account.
- 7. Any formal consent which requires determination before the next Board Meeting which officers cannot approve.
- 8. Approve any item of expenditure up to a value of £50,000.

Minutes of all actions taken by the Executive Committee should be presented to the following meeting of the Board

### Works Committees

- 1. Any formal consent which requires determination before the next Board Meeting which officers cannot approve.
- 2. Approve any individual works or scheme up to a value of £25,000.

Minutes of all actions taken by the Works Committees should be presented to the following meeting of the Board.

### Structures Committee

1. Determine applications for the renewal of Bridges and Culverts and the level of any contribution required from the ratepayer

Minutes of all actions taken by the Bridges & Culverts Committee should be presented to the following meeting of the Board.

#### Environment Committee

1. Approve expenditure of the Environmental budgets to the level set in the annual budgets.

Minutes of all actions taken by the Environment Committee should be presented to the following meeting of the Board.

### Audit & Risk Committee

- 1. To investigate any activity within its responsibilities
- 2. To seek any information that it requires from any Officer or employee of the Board and all employees are directed to cooperate with any request made by the Committee
- 3. To obtain outside legal or independent professional advice, and secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant experience and expertise if it consider this necessary

Minutes of all actions taken by the Audit & Risk Committee should be presented to the following meeting of the Board.

#### Nominations Committee

1. Prepare nominations for approval of the Board in the Board meeting following an election and any vacancies mid-term.

Minutes of all actions taken by the Nominations Committee should be presented to the following meeting of the Board.

## **DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY TO BOARD MEMBERS AND OFFICERS**

#### Chairperson of the Board

- 1. Sign agreements on behalf of the Board.
- 2. Negotiate purchases and sales on behalf of the Board.
- 3. Approve expenditure and arrangements for inspections, meetings, visits and other similar items.
- 4. Setting the agenda, type and tone of the Board discussions and chairing Board meetings, to promote effective decision making and constructive debate;
- 5. Providing leadership to the Board;
- 6. Taking responsibility for the Board's composition and development;
- 7. Ensuring proper information is made available to the Board;
- 8. Planning and conducting Board meetings effectively;
- 9. Getting all Board members involved in the Board's work;
- 10. Promoting effective relationships and open communication, both inside and outside the Boardroom, between the non-executive Board members and the Executive Committee;
- 11. Overseeing the induction and development of Board members;
- 12. Ensuring the Board focuses on its key tasks;
- 13. Engaging the Board in assessing and improving its performance;
- 14. Ensuring effective implementation of Board decisions;
- 15. Establishing a close relationship of trust with the Chief Executive and Finance Manager, providing support and advice, while respecting executive responsibility;
- 16. Representing the Board and presenting the Board's aims and policies to the outside world;
- 17. Understanding the views of ratepayers, contributing councils and key stakeholders and ensuring that effective lines of communication exist with the board;
- 18. Ensuring that the Board engages effectively with the community they represent;
- 19. Ensuring Board compliance with legislative and Governance requirements;
- 20. Reviewing value for money and setting benchmark targets.
- 21. Approve discretionary payments to employees over the overtime limit.

### Chairpersons of Works Committees

- 1. Approve minor works.
- 2. Approve consents for relaxing Bye-Laws:
  - Relaxation to 4.5 metres from the centre line when a watercourse is piped.
  - Relaxation to 6.0 metres if a clear strip of land is left clear adjacent to the watercourse for the sole use of the Board.
  - Relaxation to allow bushes to be planted 4.5 metres and trees 6.0 metres from the brink of a small or medium sized drain.

## **Chief Executive**

- 1. Day to day operation of the Board.
- 2. Recruitment of staff and workforce.
- 3. Approve expenditure up to a value of £20,000 on maintenance of plant and items which are included in annual estimates and regular budgeted expenditure (e.g. Electricity) in excess of £10,000.
- 4. Sign Board cheques and instructions to the bank with the Finance and Admin Director, with the Capital Projects Director and/or the Maintenance Director if required.
- 5. Sign agreements and consents on behalf of the Board as set out in the Board's policies.
- 6. Delivering the operational performance of the IDB, as dictated by the Board's overall strategy;
- 7. Formulating and successfully implementing Board policy;
- 8. Developing strategic operating plans that reflect the longer term corporate objectives and priorities established by the Board;
- 9. Maintaining an ongoing dialogue with the Chairperson of the Board;
- 10. Ensuring that the operating objectives and standards of performance are not only understood but owned by the management and other employees;
- 11. Providing leadership to the management and employees;
- 12. Assuming full accountability to the Board for all IDB operations;
- 13. Building and maintaining an effective executive management;
- 14. Deriving and delivering improved value for money.
- 15. Closely monitoring the operating and financial results against plans and budgets;
- 16. Taking remedial action where necessary and informing the Board of significant changes;
- 17. Representing the IDB at meetings with major ratepayers contributing councils, professional associations and key stakeholders;
- 18. Advising the Board on changes in legislation or regulations that affect the operation of the Board;
- 19. Arranging for the review and audit of the IDB processes and procedures.
- 20. Responsible Financial Officer. Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972.
- 21. Board's Data Protection Officer, as per the Data Protection Act 2018.
- 22. Approve the write-off of Drainage Rates up to a value of £250.
- 23. Approve the investment of Board funds in accordance with the Board's Financial Regulations.
- 24. Arranging for the review and audit of the IDB processes and procedures

### Directors (Capital Projects, Finance and Admin, Maintenance)

- Capital Projects Director only: Approve expenditure up to a value of £20,000 on maintenance of plant and items which are included in annual estimates and regular budgeted expenditure (e.g. Electricity) in excess of £10,000.
  Other Directors: Regular purchases of equipment, materials and services agreed in a scheme of work or for maintenance operations within budgets up to £20,000.
- 2. Sign Board cheques and instructions to the bank with the Chief Executive.
- 3. Ensuring that adequate operational planning and financial control systems are in place;
- 4. Closely monitoring the operating and financial results against plans and budgets;
- 5. Taking remedial action where necessary and informing the Chief Executive, who will Board of significant changes;
- 6. Representing the IDB at meetings with major ratepayers contributing councils, professional associations and key stakeholders;
- 7. Advising the Board on changes in legislation or regulations that affect the operation of the Board;
- 8. Sign agreements on behalf of the Board as set out in the Boards policies.